
Monday 
Topic: City Council 

You are invited to a Zoom webinar. 

When: February 7, 2022 05:30 PM Pacific Time (US and Canada) 

Topic: Council Meeting 1st 

Please click the link below to join the webinar: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83273254975?pwd=aGJhcW1aVEpFc2lDVWpXOEU5clJvdz09 

Passcode: 172825 

Or One tap mobile : 

    US: +12532158782,,83273254975#,,,,*172825#  or +16699006833,,83273254975#,,,,*172825# 

Or Telephone: 

 Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): 

        US: +1 253 215 8782  or +1 669 900 6833  or +1 346 248 7799  or +1 929 205 6099  or +1 301 715 
8592  or +1 312 626 6799  

Webinar ID: 832 7325 4975 

Passcode: 172825 

 International numbers available: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kYRNSJrRX 

City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83273254975?pwd=aGJhcW1aVEpFc2lDVWpXOEU5clJvdz09
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kYRNSJrRX


 

CITY OF LANGLEY DRAFT COUNCIL AGENDA  

Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm 
 

1.  CALL TO ORDER 
a. Roll Call-5 minutes 

 

2. CONSENT AGENDA 
The CONSENT AGENDA consists of routine items that normally do not require further Council 
discussion.  A council member may ask questions about an item before the vote is taken, or 
request that an item be removed from the consent Agenda and placed on the regular agenda for 
more detailed discussion.  A single vote is taken to approve all items remaining on the consent 
Agenda.  5 minutes 

a. Approval of Special Council Workshop minutes January 18, 2022 minutes 
of……………………………………………………………………………………………………………..….………….……4 

b. Approval of Council Meeting Minutes January 18, 2022…………………………………..……….5-7 
c. Approval of Special Council Workshop minutes January 31, 2022………………………………..8 
d. Approval of 2021 claims warrants Nos.40502-40538   and EFT’s in the amount of 

$202,896.24…………………….……………………………………………………………………..…….………..9-19 
e. Approval of payroll claims #40495-40500 and Eft in the amount of $92,206.15…………20 
f. List of Committees-staff liaison and council liaison…………………………………………………….21 
g. Approval of reappointment of Marianne Edain to Parks and Open Space…………………..22 
h. Approval of Mary Michell as Alternate for Planning Advisory Board (PAB)…………….……23 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA-5 minutes 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT-5-15 minutes 
5. ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS-None 
6. PUBLIC HEARING-None 
7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

a. Discussion of Committees-Mayor Scot Chaplin-15 minutes……………………………………24-25 
b. Work Plan Discussion-Mayor Scott Chaplin-15 minutes………………………………………….26-32 
 

8. NEW BUSINESS 
a. Use of Unimproved Anthes Right-of-way at Seawall Park-Meredith Penny, Planning 

Director and Randi Perry, Public Works Director-15 minutes-------------------------------33-36 
b. Janice Kleiner, Owner of Doghouse -15 minutes-……………………………………….……………37-43 
c. Parks and Open Space-Park Avenue Viewpoint-Kent Hanson-15 minutes……………..44-49 
d. Rental Inspections-Council Member Thomas Gill 

9. MAYOR’S REPORT-15 minutes-………………………………………………………………………………………….50-56 
10. COUNCIL REPORTS-15 minutes 
11. EXECUTIVE SESSION-To discuss litigation or potential litigation with the governing body’s 

attorney (RCW 42.30.110(1)(a)(i)-30 minutes 
12. ADJOURNMENT 

 

City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

2



*Citizen Comments: We welcome comments on subjects of concern or interest that are not on the agenda. Please 
state your name and address so this can be recorded and limit your comments to 5 minutes. Questions will be 
answered immediately if the answer is brief, and the information is available. Otherwise, answers will be provided 
as soon as possible. Thank you for participating! If reasonable accommodation of a disability is needed, please 
contact Monica Felici at (360) 221-4246 at least 48 hours prior to this meeting. 
 
Statement regarding Potential Conflicts of Interest - Officials, employees, consultants, volunteers and vendors are obliged to withdraw from 
any involvement in a matter where there is a conflict or perceived conflict, even if they feel certain they can act impartially. If a conflict, or 
potential conflict exists, the affected party shall declare so at the first public meeting when the matter is being considered. And shall withdraw 
from the meeting or future meetings for the duration of the discussion of the issue.  
 
Langley is a Civility First City and conducts its governance abiding by the Civility First Pledge: 
 

1. Value honesty and good will while striving to solve problems. 
2. Attempt genuinely to understand the point of view of others 

3. Model civil behavior and tone, online as well as in public by: 
a. Being kind while maintaining the right to vigorously disagree 
b. Acting respectfully toward others, including opponents. 
c. Listening to those who disagree with us, as well as supporters 
d. Making only accurate statements when defending a position 
e. Refraining from characterizing adversaries as evil 
f. Challenge disrespectful behavior, courteously 
g, Encourage any person or organization working on our behalf to meet these same standards from civil discourse 

City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

3



Council Workshop Minutes  
Monday January 18, 2022 

 
Meeting was called to order by Mayor Scott Chaplin at 3:00 pm 
 
ROLL CALL  
 
In attendance:  Council Member Rhonda Salerno; Council Member Craig Cyr; Council Member 
Thomas Gill; Council Member Gail Fleming; Mayor Scott Chaplin; Monica Felici, 
Clerk/Treasurer, Meredith Penny, Planning Director 
 
TOPIC OF DISCUSSION 
 
Discussion was updating Commissions and Boards 

1. Views of how process should proceed 
2. Sense of Status Quo 
3. Prioritize 

 
All Council members spoke on what they felt was important and their views on how the process 
of updating and making all Committees, Commissions, and Boards Uniform 

City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

4



Council Meeting Minutes  
Tuesday January 18, 2022 

 
Meeting was called to order by Mayor Scott Chaplin at 5:31pm 
 
Land Acknowledgement 
 
ROLL CALL  
 
In attendance:  Council Member Harolynne Bobis; Council Member Gail Fleming; Council 
Member Craig Cyr; Council Member Thomas Gill; Council Member Rhonda Salerno; Mayor 
Scott Chaplin; Monica Felici, Clerk/Treasurer, Randi Perry, Public Works Director and Meredith 
Penny, Planning Director; and Darlene Baldwin, Assistant Clerk 
 
APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 
  
 Motion to Approve Consent Agenda  
 Motion: Council Member Craig Cyr 
 2nd:  Council Member Harolynne Bobis 
 
 Discussion: 
   
 Motion Passed unanimously 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
 Motion to Approve Agenda  
 
 Motion: Council Member Rhonda Salerno 
 2nd:  Council Member Thomas Gill 
 
 Discussion:  
  Add “E” to new Business-Approval of Maureen Freehill to Planning Advisory 
Board 
    
 Motion Passed unanimously with adjustments 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 Janice Machala-Coles Valley and 2004 Annexation 
 Donna Vanderhiden-Coles Valley 
  
EXECUTIVE SESSION-None 

City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

5



PUBLIC HEARING-NONE 

ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS-NONE 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

1. Committees-Mayor Scott Chaplin
a. Quick review of afternoon workshop
b. Council members will prioritize committees and send to Mayor Scott Chaplin

NEW BUSINESS 

1. Langley Creates-Joann Quintana and Inge Morascini
a. Power point Presentation
b. Requested Council to commit funds
c. Public Comment from Janice Machala
d. Langley Creates will bring a formal request to next Council Meeting

2. Discussion of meeting format-Council Member Rhonda Salerno
a. Following ideas for reformatting meeting

i. Add the amount of time each presentation will take
ii. Reviewing actual ordinance

iii. Limiting Public Comment
iv. Eliminate items on agenda that there are no presentations

b. Discussion-cannot limit time of meeting or public comment
c. Tabled for more discussion at later time

3. Public Disturbance-Council Member Rhonda Salerno
a. Tabled for a later time

4. Approval of Maureen Freehill to Planning Advisory Board-Mayor Scott Chaplin

Motion to approve Maureen Freehill to Planning Advisory Board

Motion: Council Member Rhonda Salerno
2nd:  Council Member Gail Fleming

Discussion

Motion Passed unanimously

City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

6

Council Meeting Minutes January 18, 2022



MAYOR’ REPORT 
1 Peter Morton will be alternate for Public Works Advisory Committee 
2 Emmy chair of Parks and Open Space 
3 Process for hiring Police Chief on going deadline February 15, 2022 

STAFF REPORTS 

1. Randi Perry, Director of Public Works
a. Public Works Advisory Committee (PWAC)
b. Speed Data Collection

2. Meredith Penny, Director of Planning
a. 2022 Work Plan
b. Planning Advisory Board (PAB)
c. Update on number of planning and building permits

3. Monica Felici, Clerk/Treasurer
a. Correction to report regarding Tourism Funds

COUNCIL REPORTS 

1. Council Member Harolynne Bobis
a. No report

2. Council Member Rhonda Salerno
a. No report

3. Council Member Thomas Gill
a. Reported on the Port of South Whidbey Meeting

4. Council Member Craig Cyr
a. Island Transit

5. Council Member Gail Fleming
a. Liaison Historic Presentation
b. Liaison Parks and Open Space
c. Attended PWAC meeting
d. Parks and Open Space

ADJOURNMENT-Mayor Scott Chaplin adjourned meeting at 8:45 p.m. 

City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

7

Council Meeting Minutes January 18, 2022



Council Workshop Minutes  
Monday January 31, 2022 

Meeting was called to order by Mayor Scott Chaplin at 3:37 pm 

ROLL CALL  

In attendance:  Council Member Rhonda Salerno; Council Member Craig Cyr; Council Member 
Thomas Gill; Council Member Gail Fleming; Harolynne Bobis, Mayor Scott Chaplin; Monica 
Felici, Clerk/Treasurer, Meredith Penny, Planning Director; Darlene Baldwin, Assistant Clerk 

TOPIC OF DISCUSSION 

Discussion was updating Commissions and Boards 
1. 2022 Work Plan

a. All Council Members agreed that a work plan is needed
b. Was noted that a work plan is usually done at budget time-workplan is used to

prepare budget
c. Council members will forward goals and ideas to Mayor Chaplin

2. Boards and Commissions
a. Council Members stated what they felt should be top priority

i. Clean up Code before start making changes to Boards/Commissions
ii. Have a document everyone can work off

iii. Review and decide which boards fall where to make sure code works
for all

iv. Discussed whether Council should be liaisons
v. Finance Committee

Meeting adjourned by Mayor Chaplin at 5:02pm 

City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

8



C
ity

 o
f L

an
gl

ey
 C

ou
nc

il 
M

ee
tin

g 
M

on
da

y 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 7

, 2
02

2 
@

 5
:3

0p
m

9



C
ity

 o
f L

an
gl

ey
 C

ou
nc

il 
M

ee
tin

g 
M

on
da

y 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 7

, 2
02

2 
@

 5
:3

0p
m

10



C
ity

 o
f L

an
gl

ey
 C

ou
nc

il 
M

ee
tin

g 
M

on
da

y 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 7

, 2
02

2 
@

 5
:3

0p
m

11



C
ity

 o
f L

an
gl

ey
 C

ou
nc

il 
M

ee
tin

g 
M

on
da

y 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 7

, 2
02

2 
@

 5
:3

0p
m

12



C
ity

 o
f L

an
gl

ey
 C

ou
nc

il 
M

ee
tin

g 
M

on
da

y 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 7

, 2
02

2 
@

 5
:3

0p
m

13



C
ity

 o
f L

an
gl

ey
 C

ou
nc

il 
M

ee
tin

g 
M

on
da

y 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 7

, 2
02

2 
@

 5
:3

0p
m

14



C
ity

 o
f L

an
gl

ey
 C

ou
nc

il 
M

ee
tin

g 
M

on
da

y 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 7

, 2
02

2 
@

 5
:3

0p
m

15



C
ity

 o
f L

an
gl

ey
 C

ou
nc

il 
M

ee
tin

g 
M

on
da

y 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 7

, 2
02

2 
@

 5
:3

0p
m

16



C
ity

 o
f L

an
gl

ey
 C

ou
nc

il 
M

ee
tin

g 
M

on
da

y 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 7

, 2
02

2 
@

 5
:3

0p
m

17



C
ity

 o
f L

an
gl

ey
 C

ou
nc

il 
M

ee
tin

g 
M

on
da

y 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 7

, 2
02

2 
@

 5
:3

0p
m

18



C
ity

 o
f L

an
gl

ey
 C

ou
nc

il 
M

ee
tin

g 
M

on
da

y 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 7

, 2
02

2 
@

 5
:3

0p
m

19



C
ity

 o
f L

an
gl

ey
 C

ou
nc

il 
M

ee
tin

g 
M

on
da

y 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 7

, 2
02

2 
@

 5
:3

0p
m

20



City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

21



City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

22



City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

23



City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

24



City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

25



City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

26



City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

27



City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

28



City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

29



City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

30



City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

31



City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

32



        City of Langley 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Langley City Council
From:   Randi Perry, Director of Public Works & Meredith Penny, Director of Community Planning
Re: Use of Unimproved Anthes Right-of-Way at Seawall Park 

Meeting Date:  February 7, 2022 

The purpose of this memo is to present background information and request conversation begin to determine 
appropriate use of the right of way to access Seawall Park. 

Background 

The owners of 230 1st Street began a phased approach in 2017, to upgrade what is known as The Doghouse.  The 
concept review was taken to the Design Review Board (DRB).  This submittal included a garage on the north side of the 
building.  The determination approved only siding, windows, and signage.  A phase 1 building permit was issued to 
address structural issues and the three approved DRB elements. No authorization or approval was given for any new 
construction.  The owners are now wanting to move into phase 2 which includes building occupancy and final design.  
The owners are requesting use of the public unimproved right of way to access a proposed private garage.  

Staff is exploring both the technical issues and the public benefit of granting this type of use.  

The paved area is authorized vehicle access only and is utilized by public works to access the sewer lift station and the 
park.  The access is extremely steep and is primarily used by pedestrians to access the park.  Limited visibility during 
ingress and egress creates conflict between pedestrians and vehicles. The gravel road near the seawall is not located on 
public property.  The city maintenance crew has not been granted access to the gravel drive which makes garbage 
collection and park maintenance difficult. 

Normal use of right of way for this type of development requires roadway improvement to meet a standard of 16’ width. 
The City Engineer would potentially approve a reduction of road width to 12’-14’ provided the Fire Marshall approves.      
The upgrade would also require a separated pedestrian walkway that meets ADA requirements to the maximum extent 
feasible. 

In addition to the request from the owners of the Doghouse, neighboring property owners have expressed interest in 
utilizing the unimproved right of way to access their properties as well. 

Considerations 

- Are there ways the public can benefit from allowing private use of a public access?
o Use agreements could be used to expand public access to the lower gravel area.

- How will the pedestrian experience be impacted?
- How would authorized-only access be managed in the right of way? Would authorization still be required if

improvements are made?

City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

33



- What potential development could/would result from providing access to the north side of the park?
o Mixed use residential additions require 2 parking spaces per unit.
o How would development, accessory structures, garages, or parking spaces on adjacent private property

impact the experience of park visitors?
 Visual impacts?
 More “eyes” on the street for crime prevention and safety?
 Pedestrian/traffic conflicts?
 Impervious surfaces?
 Lighting?
 Are there other ways of addressing potential development impacts while still allowing private

access?
- What other considerations should be investigated?

Discussion with PWAC 

On January 12, 2022 staff presented this issue to the Public Works Advisory Committee (PWAC) and the members held a 
discussion on the above considerations staff had outlined.  

After the discussion, staff compiled the following questions raised by the PWAC members for staff to research and come 
back with answers. 

Questions from PWAC 

• Would the grade need to be altered?
• Is there liability to allowing people to drive on a steep slope?
• What about sea level rise?
• Cars coming down in the ice, could the City close it during inclement weather?
• Was that area designed for that level of traffic? What would be the impact of compacting the soils behind

the seawall?
• How can you widen the access without impacting the lift station?
• What would the access be used for?
• Would it be a shared cost?
• What would be the liability of denying the access?

Next Steps 

Staff are not seeking a decision from Council at this time. Staff would like the opportunity to continue to compile the 
relevant questions for consideration, conduct more research, and have a meeting with all the adjacent property owners 
before coming back to PWAC and Council for further discussion. This conversation may also be appropriate to have with 
the Parks & Open Space Committee and/or the Planning Advisory Board. Staff would appreciate suggestions for any 
other stakeholders that Council would like staff to engage with on this topic. 

City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

34



City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

35



Renderings of Doghouse Proposed Garage and Deck 

City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

36



TO: CITY COUNCIL OF LANGLEY, WA 
FROM: JANICE & CHARLES KLEINER 
DATE: FEB 2, 2022 
RE: DOG HOUSE PROJECT (230 First St., Langley, WA) 

Thank you for helping us to address the issues so that we may move along with the project.  
This memo is to clarify what we are requesting from the City Council regarding the Dog House 
project. 

1. To recognize that the concept of the garage and back decks to the hall/dining room/
and residence were conceptually approved in 2015 by the Design Review Board.  This
does not mean that the DRB approved the engineering for the garage and decks but did
discuss and approve the concept of the garage and use of the Anthes ROW (right of
way) for access.

2. To continue to support the previously submitted design and use of the public right of
way as it is and will not require the Kleiners to have the access changed to a public road,
nor does it require the Kleiners to provide ADA access to Seawall Park.

During recent meetings with the new planning director, the public works director, and the 
contracted city engineer a few issues came up and we all agreed that taking them to the city 
council was probably the best direction. 

I’d like to start with why we need this.  We have been told that because the city does not have 
proof that the Design Review Board approved the concept of the garage/decks and use of 
Anthes Right of Way that they cannot consider it approved.  We were told that if they had on 
record that this was done we would not be being asked to do what they are now asking of us. 

They also do not feel confident that the city still supports having a garage built on the north end 
of the property because it may affect the character of Seawall Park. 

So, in nut shell, if the city council can agree on the record that the concept of the garage, decks, 
and use of Anthes Right of Way were previously discussed and found acceptable in 2015 and 
that they still support the design then much of the rest of the discussion becomes moot. 

If not, the planning, public works, and contracted engineer are letting us know that they expect 
us to hire an outside engineer to design and propose a plan that would include upgrading the 
public Right of Way to a road and to provide a separate pedestrian ADA access to Seawall Park 
unless the city council can bless the use of the right of way as is. 

Enclosed in the packet is a copy of the Historical Review Board May 2015 meeting minutes and 
a copy of the article that was written after the approval in the South Whidbey Record.  

 I would also like to make a statement regarding this at the meeting.   Thank you very much. 

City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

37



City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

38



City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

39



The new Dog House: Owners release 
renovation plans for historic tavern 
A restoration of the Dog House Tavern and a reopening of the historic bar may soon be on the 
way in Langley. 

• By Ben Watanabe
• Sunday, May 24, 2015 12:52pm
• NEWS  

These conceptual designs of a Dog House renovation were presented to two Langley advisory 
groups recently 

A restoration of the Dog House Tavern and a reopening of the historic bar may 
soon be on the way in Langley. 

Owners Janice and Charlie Kleiner recently received conditional approval from 
a pair of Langley citizen boards to move forward with conceptual designs. 

Plans for the building include a residence and office/retail space upstairs, a 
restaurant and bar at street level, an event space on the lower level, and a two-
car garage for the residents off the Anthes Avenue hill. Off the back of each 
floor juts a deck looking out toward Camano Island and Saratoga Passage. 

City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

40

https://www.southwhidbeyrecord.com/author/ben-watanabe/
https://www.southwhidbeyrecord.com/news/


 

0 seconds of 30 secondsVolume 0% 

Based on the concept designs and architect Duaine Weston’s presentation to 
the Design Review Board on May 19, the building’s facades will remain largely 
unchanged, including the bright red paint. 

“Bob (Waterman) and his group are going to hold you to the fire on that one,” 
said Bob Dalton, the design board’s chairman, referring to Waterman and the 
Langley Historic Preservation Commission. 

The Kleiners, the building’s owners since 2010, submitted the conceptual 
designs to the city’s Historic Preservation Commission and Design Review 
Board this week. Prepared by Duaine Weston & Associates and architect David 
G. Welsh, the design passed muster with the preservation commission — an 
unofficial step in the process. Waterman said the Kleiners were interested in 
seeing if their changes — such as the decks, a different First Street awning and 
restoring the old windows — would qualify them for the city’s historic register 
and a property tax break. They presented their drawings to the preservation 
commission May 12. 

“Our sense was in looking at their plans that, although there will be additions 
such as the decks and windows, the main mass and two sides — south side and 
west side, would retain their historic characters,” Waterman said in followup 
interview Thursday. 

On Tuesday, Janice Kleiner and Weston made a similar presentation to the 
Design Review Board. Other than a few concerns about lighting, fire escapes, 
future signage and paint color, the design board members were pleased with 
what they saw. 

“It’s low impact and I support it,” said Ron Kasprisin, a design board member, 
after looking at the design specs. 

The Dog House Tavern has come a long way in just the past two years. After a 
stop-and-start restoration and renovation plan, the building’s outcome 
looked grim. 

In 2014, the Langley City Council passed an ordinance outlining steps for 
demolishing buildings that are eligible to be or already on the National or 
Washington historic registers. The rules came in response to an inquiry by the 
Kleiners about demolition, which prompted the city to adopt guidelines for 

City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

41



historic building destruction that would prevent demolition by neglect and 
allow Langley to keep buildings it found historically important. 

Now that the locally beloved but long dormant Dog House is on its way to 
waking, city officials are getting behind the project. Waterman said he fully 
supported their designs because they were in line with the structure’s history. 

“This is a combination of a preservation and restoration project,” Waterman 
said at the Design Review Board’s meeting Tuesday. 

Weston was seeking a general nod from city representatives before going 
forward for a structural engineer’s designs to be submitted to the Community 
Planning department for review. The four members said they conditionally 
okayed the concepts, but still needed to review the exterior lighting, signage 
and awning before giving a full approval. 

City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

42



City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

43



Park Avenue Viewpoint:

Recommended Improvements

Parks and Open Space Commission

November 10, 2021

I. Introduction

The City of Langley’s 60-foot wide right-of-way for Park Avenue extends north to
Saratoga Passage.  The part of the right-of-way between the end of the street and the
waterfront is included in the Inventory of Open Space in Langley (June 2007).   A small grassy
area lies between the end of the paved street and the bluff overlooking Saratoga Passage.
Residents in the surrounding neighborhood occasionally walk to the overlook to appreciate the
views that extend to the Cascade Mountains, and have requested that the overlook be made
more accessible for that purpose.  The space has no amenities to support any other activities.

The Parks and Open Space Commission (POSC) has evaluated proposals to improve
the Park Avenue Viewpoint to better accommodate public uses appropriate to the setting.  The
fundamental criteria for that evaluation are prescribed by the Langley Municipal Code, which
states:  “The commission shall work to enhance the health and well-being of residents,
businesses and visitors through the city’s responsible, innovative and cost effective
conservation and stewardship of land and water resources including active use parks, passive
enjoyment areas, and natural places.”  LMC Section 2.57.020.  POSC’s evaluation included a
review of existing site conditions, consideration of concerns raised by neighboring property
owners, and recognition of fiscal constraints.  The evaluation process included site visits by
POSC members, consideration of written comments from the public, an onsite meeting with
landowners whose lots are adjacent to or near the Viewpoint, and discussion at each of POSC’s
monthly meetings since February 2021.

POSC recommends that the Viewpoint continue use as a neighborhood pocket park, and
that the City Council approve modest improvements to the Park Avenue Viewpoint to enhance
the entrance, facilitate passive enjoyment, and increase public safety.  Most capital costs would
be funded by private donations and work would be performed by volunteers.  Public Works
would provide long-term maintenance.

II. Existing Conditions

The public space at the north end of Park Avenue includes a sloping grassy area that is
approximately 2,000 square feet.  The small size and slope of the lawn does not allow active
sports or large gatherings.  The setting and views across Saratoga Passage encourage
contemplation, quiet conversation, and other passive uses.

1

City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

44



The upper end of the lawn is at an elevation approximately 6 to 7 feet lower than the
street.  The public enters the area from the street on the south by way of a short trail that
descends the ~1:2 slope through shrubs and small trees.  The trail tread is well-worn.

From the foot of the trail, the lawn extends north approximately 55 feet to an 8 to 10-foot
wide vegetated strip across the width of the Viewpoint.  The elevation at the north end of the
lawn is approximately 10 feet lower than the south end.  The vegetated strip includes salal,
shrubs and a multi-trunk maple that prevent unintentional access and impede intentional entry.
Two feet below this strip is an ~8-foot wide area that is also heavily vegetated to the top of the
embankment leading to Saratoga Passage.

The east and west boundaries of the Viewpoint are not clearly defined.  Along the east
boundary, there is no significant change in grade between the Viewpoint and the neighboring
(McMullen) property.  Lawn extends across the boundary.  Three fruit trees lie just inside the
Viewpoint, and, when in leaf, partially obstruct views from the Viewpoint to the neighbor’s upper
and lower patios.  The neighboring house is effectively screened in spring to fall by Japanese
maple trees.

The west boundary is entirely obscured by shrubs, small trees and other vegetation on a
slope.  The vegetation begins approximately 15 feet inside the west boundary, ascends a small
slope, towers more than 10 feet above the lawn, and completely obstructs views of the
neighboring (Goldfinger) property to the west.  Near the south end of the vegetation, a trail leads
from the Viewpoint to the neighboring property and exposes a narrow view of the garage.

From the street, the Viewpoint is not identified as public space and lies behind shrubs
and trees.  The entrance to the access trail is not obvious and is frequently blocked by a vehicle
parked in the center of the cul de sac.  Historical aerial photographs show that one or two
vehicles are often parked at the end of the street, which contains no marked parking spaces or
signage indicating whether/where parking is permitted/prohibited.

The past amount of public use of the Viewpoint cannot be determined.  The well-worn
trail tread evidences more than infrequent use, but some traffic is attributable to workmen who
performed work on the McMullen property.  Adjacent landowners report little usage, but the
Viewpoint can be seen from only one adjacent parcel.  POSC members individually visited the
Viewpoint for as long as 45 minutes without being noticed by adjacent landowners.  Other
neighborhood residents report that they have refrained from using the Viewpoint because
existing conditions suggest that it is private property.  For more than a year, a city barricade and
sign stating “NO PUBLIC ACCESS” has blocked the entry to the Viewpoint.  The City placed the
barricade after receiving a  complaint from an adjacent landowner that the bluff presented a
hazard to public safety.

II. Recommended Improvements

A. Either reorient existing trail to reduce the grade or install stairs and handrail from the
street to the grassy slope.  Prune/remove vegetation that obstructs entry to the

2

City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

45



Viewpoint, blocks views from an area accessible to diabled users, and prevents “natural
surveillance” of Viewpoint activities from Park Avenue.

B. At the bottom of   the grassy slope, install a sign that states “Dangerous Bluff – No
Beach Access.”  Signage might also state “Beach Access at First and Anthes.”

C. Install signs identifying the location of the east boundary.  Consider planting a hedge
(native species) to further deter trespass on the neighboring property.

D. Install a small deck to serve as a bench near the southwest corner of the lawn.  The
location for the deck is outside the 50-foot buffer from the bluff, but is within the
additional 15-foot “building setback” applicable to “dwellings, structures and buildings.”
The code allows a deck to be constructed in the setback, and a deck that is 6 feet long
and 1 foot wide and no more than 18 inches above ground could be installed in lieu of a
bench.

F. Remove invasive ivy and blackberry and replace it with native vegetation pursuant to
an enhancement plan approved by the Planning Department..

G. Install a sign at the entrance to the Viewpoint  identifying “Park Avenue Viewpoint” on
the City of Langley signage template.  Post hours of use.

H. Stripe pavement at the end of Park Avenue to designate a pedestrian walkway/no
parking area at the entrance to the trail/stairs and the street-level viewing area
accessible to diabled users.

III. Funding

POSC requests approval to seek the following funds from donors::

● Trail construction by the Langley Community Club. Est Cost: $200 plus volunteer
time.

● Signage from the Mainstreet Association or Langley Chamber of Commerce. Est
Cost: $200.

● Install a 1’ by 6’ deck in an appropriate location on the Viewpoint. Est. cost $200.

POSC requests that the City Council provide funding to:

● Regular vegetative maintenance pursuant to an approved 5-year maintenance
plan and security oversight from the City of Langley. Est Cost: Within the City’s
current scope of work and budget

● Stripe a pedestrian walkway (no-parking strip) adn ADA viewing area
approximately 4 feet wide and 12 feet long at the entrance to the Viewpoint. Est.
Cost: $400.

3

City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

46



IV. Potential Issues

A. Viewpoint Safety

The bluff is almost entirely blocked by dense vegetation that extends well back from the
edge.  The risks of falling are low and no greater than those posed by the unfenced bluffs on the
neighboring properties, along Cascade Avenue, or on the open space next to the Langley Motel.
The signage will provide additional deterrence to anyone thinking about getting closer to the
edge of the bluff.

In the event an additional barrier is determined to be necessary, a hedge (native
species) could be planted.  A fence could be installed only after satisfying the requirements of
Shoreline Management Plan (SMP) section 4.8.2 and Langley Municipal Code (LMC) section
16.20.045.

B. Street Safety

Designating a pedestrian walkway will prevent parked vehicles from blocking access to
the Viewpoint and forcing pedestrians to walk closer to the Goldfinger driveway.  This will
improve safety over current conditions.

The driveway to the Goldfinger property begins near the northwest corner of the street,
and is accessible as long as no more than two vehicles are parked at the end of the street.  It
appears that a driver backing out of the Goldfinger property would need to avoid parked
vehicles and back across the street and into the driveway to 106 Park Avenue in order to turn
around and drive south on Park Avenue.  A designated pedestrian walkway would provide more
space for backing and direct pedestrians away from the Goldfinger driveway.

A designated walkway would eliminate one of the two on-street spaces currently used by
adjacent landowners.  When POSC met with the owners, Goldfinger’s car was parked where the
walkway would be located, and forced pedestrians to walk next to Goldfinger's driveway.
Eliminating that parking space would create only a minor inconvenience for Goldfinger, who has
a two-car garage and driveway.  The on-street parking space currently used by the McMullens
would not be affected.

C. ADA Accessibility

The site’s topography and limited area do not allow construction of facilities necessary to
provide disability access.  ADA requirements do not apply to the site beyond the end of the
street pavement.  A street-level viewing area would be accessible.

D. Neighbor Privacy

Viewpoint users currently have views of the McMullen property.  A privacy fence along
the southern half of the Viewpoint’s east property line would block views of the McMullens’
upper and lower patios from the proposed park bench, without obstructing the McMullens’ views

4

City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

47



to the northwest.  Defining the northern half of the east property line with a split rail fence will
provide greater deterrence to trespassers than currently exists.

Viewpoint users do not now and will not in the future have a view that intrudes on the
privacy of the Goldfinger property.  The dense vegetation provides ample deterrence to potential
trespassers.

Adjacent property owners can provide additional privacy fencing and “No Trespassing”
signs to deter intrusion.

E. Nuisances

The legal status of the Viewpoint will not change.  The Viewpoint has long been open to
public use.  While usage may increase when current impediments to access are removed, the
Viewpoint will continue to serve as a neighborhood pocket park for passive uses.  Noise from
Viewpoint users should be less than from residential neighbors (e.g., no power saws, leaf
blowers) and less frequent given limited hours of use.  Langley’s noise ordinance applies.

There have been no complaints of homeless camping to date, perhaps due to the
absence of level areas on the site.  That will not change.

While some misconduct has been reported in Seawall Park, crime has not been an issue
in neighborhood parks.  Neighborhood use will promote natural surveillance and calls to the
police when appropriate.

F. Visitor Parking

Given its location, limited size, and lack of amenities, the Viewpoint will continue to serve
as a park for neighbors who will walk to the Viewpoint and not require parking.  The Viewpoint
will lack the attractions necessary to make it a destination for drivers.  For people who do drive,
there is on-street parking in close proximity.  If neighbors wish, “No Parking” signs can be
installed along Park Avenue.

G. Maintenance

The Public Works Department will maintain (e.g., mow, trim, remove trash) the
Viewpoint, which will not require increased staffing or additional equipment.

H. City Liability

Liability is the same as for any other park.  Washington’s Recreational Land Use Act
provides immunity to a land owner against liability for unintentional injuries when that person
holds the land open to members of the public for recreational purposes and does not charge a
fee, unless the injuries sustained were caused by conditions:  1) “known” to the landowner; 2)
“dangerous” (i.e., poses an unreasonable risk of harm); 3) “artificial” (i.e., created by human
effort and not by natural causes); 4) “latent” (i.e., not readily apparent to the recreational user);

5

City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

48



and 5) not identified by a conspicuous warning sign.  RCW 4.24.200 to .210.  The City’s liability
insurance will continue to provide coverage against claims.

V. Conclusion

The recommended improvements to Park Avenue Viewpoint will enhance the user’s
experience and improve safety without significant cost to the City and without further interfering
with neighboring properties.  POSC requests that the City Council authorize implementation of
the recommended improvements.

6

City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

49



City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

50



City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

51



City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

52



City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

53



City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

54



City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

55



City of Langley Council Meeting 
Monday February 7, 2022 @ 5:30pm

56


	2022-02-07_Staff Memo and Attachments - Anthes ROW Use.pdf
	2022-02-07_Staff Memo-Anthes ROW use
	Seawall Survey 2017
	Renderings of Doghouse Proposed Garage and Deck

	ADPEE3.tmp
	The new Dog House: Owners release renovation plans for historic tavern




